Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Middleton Township Committee
Thursday 17th September 2020
6.00 pm.
Zoom Meeting

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

5

Minutes - Middleton Township Committee
To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Middleton Township
Committee held on 30th July 2020.

3-4

6

Play Strategy Presentation

5 - 10

To consider a presentation from the Director of Neighbourhoods.
7

Section 106 - Middleton Play Provision
To consider a report of the Director of Economy relating to Section 106
funding for play provision.

Middleton Township Committee Members
Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Phil Burke
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Neil Emmott
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Susan Smith
Councillor Carol Wardle
Councillor June West
Councillor Donna Williams
Councillor Peter Williams
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services
Telephone: 01706 924711
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk

11 - 14

Agenda Item 5
MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday 30th July 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Donna Williams (Chair); Councillors Boriss, Burke,
Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Martin, Nolan, Robinson, Rowbotham, Smith, Wardle,
West and Peter Williams
OFFICERS: V. White and L. Mason (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and A. James
(Resources Directorate)
Also in Attendance: Two members of the public
APOLOGIES
6
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dale and Councillor
Joinson.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
7
Councillor Donna Williams declared personal and prejudicial interests in the
funding application submitted by the Middleton Town Centre Management Company
and withdrew from the meeting during consideration of the application, vacating the
Chair in favour of the Vice-Chair, Councillor Smith.
Councillor Nolan declared personal and prejudicial interests in the funding application
submitted by the Middleton Town Centre Management Company and withdrew from
the meeting during consideration of the application.
URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
8
There were no urgent items of business for consideration.
MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
9
Resolved:
1. That the Minutes of the meeting of the Middleton Township Committee held
on 18th June 2020 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.
PLAY STRATEGY PRESENTATION
10
Resolved:
1. That the Play Strategy Presentation be withdrawn from the Agenda and
deferred until a future meeting of the Committee.
MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2020/21
11
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods
which provided an update on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments and
balances of Middleton Township Funds 2020/21 and to enable the Committee to
consider the allocation of funds to proposed projects.
Alternatives considered:
In considering the report, Members could decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects.

Page 3

Resolved:
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton Township
revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2 of the report be
noted;
2. That the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3
of the report be noted;
3. That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has assessed
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility
for the Middleton Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and that any
specific risks had been identified in the report;
4. That the applications for Township Funds be dealt with as follows:APPLICATION
Fairstage Academy – Studio equipment
and teaching resources

DECISION
Application deferred

Middleton Town Centre Management
Function including Christmas Lights
Switch On 2020

Award of £15,200 (£10,000 from projects
fund and £5,200 from events fund)

Patterdale Drive Parking Issues,
Middleton

Award of £7775 from West Ward capital
funds and the balance remaining to be
funded from Township Capital funds

Page 4

Play Area Strategy 2020 - 2030
Why do we need a Strategy?
To move management methods from reacting to
circumstances to a planned and progressive method.

•

To enable Councillors inform the actions of Officers.

•

New s106 legal processes at the Planning Application stage.

•

Everyone pulling together to achieve the shared aims.

Agenda Item 6

Page 5

•

So We Can Move From This to This

Page 6

What Did We Do to Develop a Draft Strategy
Research other Council Play Strategies to find the best model.

•

Agreed a scope for the strategy.

•

Mapped our existing provision.

•

Assessed the quality of every play facility.

Page 7

•

Key Findings
• The Borough has sufficient play provision but there are a few
localised areas of under and over provision.
• Need to tackling immediate safety issues.
Page 8

• Additional Capital and Revenue budget is required to fund any
additional play facilities.
• Provision for families with disabilities requires urgent attention.
• RBH host a number of play areas and if any of these close at
any future stage and if they leave an area of under provision
then the Council will need to resource replacement facilities
and their maintenance. Discussions are ongoing with RBH.

Vision and Objectives
Rochdale Borough Council will develop and manage excellent play
areas for every child in the Borough

• Quality of design to encourage access and inclusion, maximise
play value, attractive to children, innovation.
• Good distribution by age / type to across the Borough.
Page 9

• Communities value and utilise the play facilities to the full.
• Designed to be cost effective to maintain.
• Maximising income from s106, external grants, sponsors etc.
• Effective maintenance regime to ensure safety and information
flow when equipment is out of use for repairs.

Next Steps
•

Consultation with Townships to agree Township specific action
plans within the wider strategy.

•

Township agree actions on any decisions around existing over
and under provision and cross Ward boundary decisions

Page 10

• Adopting the strategy via report to Formal Cabinet
• Ongoing review process with Township / Ward Members so the
action plan for the Township is kept up to date

Agenda Item 7
Report to Middleton Township Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

17th September 2020
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development &
Housing
Nick Barton
Public

Section 106 - Middleton Play Provision
Executive Summary
1.1

This report seeks approval to allocate funds currently held from Section 106
Open Space contributions in Middleton to contribute to improvements to play
facilities at Hollin Play Area and in Alkrington.
Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Committee Members approve the allocation of
£10,123 from Section 106 Open Space contributions to improvements to
play facilities at Hollin Play Area.

2.2

It is recommended that Committee Members approve the allocation of
£28,910 from Section 106 Open Space contributions to provide a new play
facilities in Alkrington.

Reason for Recommendation
3.1

Middleton Township Members have previously requested that all Section
106 Open Space funded schemes be approved by Members by way of a
report to an appropriate committee. A similar process of reporting exists in
all other Townships.

3.2

Costed schemes have been prepared by the Council’s Environmental
Management Service and are supported by Ward Councillors.

3.3

The schemes are within the parameters of the Section 106 agreements and
the Council’s ‘Provision of Recreational Open Space in New Housing’
Supplementary Planning Document.

Page 11

Key Points for Consideration
4.1

Rochdale Council’s Supplementary Planning Document ‘Provision of
Recreational Open Space in New Housing’, states that contributions may be
used towards the provision (including 20 years maintenance) and / or
improvement of open space within 5 years of receipt. In the case of informal
open space, such as play areas, provision should be within 20 minutes
walking distance of the development generating the contribution, the
proposed projects meet this criteria.
Hollin Play Area

4.1

Hollin Play Area is the only play area serving the Middleton section of
Hopwood Hall ward. Over the years various pieces of equipment have been
removed for health and safety reasons, but not replaced. As such, the play
facilities only serve the basic needs of users.

4.2

There is an opportunity to upgrade the upgrade the play value of the site
and improve access and inclusion, through provision of a new path, steel
picnic bench and “aeroskate” slide; alongside repair or replacement of
existing equipment and safety surfacing.

4.3

The total cost of the scheme is £17,252, of which £10,123 would be Section
106 open space contributions and the remainder from existing
Environmental Management budgets. The maintenance cost will be met
from existing Environmental Management budgets.
Alkrington

4.4

RBH play areas (The Heath and The Downs) have been decommissioned
by RBH due to vandalism and anti-social behaviour, exacerbated by the
location of the facilities directly next to housing and the fact that the
equipment nearing the end of its lifespan was uneconomic to repair.

4.5

RBH are keen to work with the Council to secure improved play provision for
the south of Alkrington and as such have offered a potential location (subject
to consultation and planning) and a financial contribution to the capital
investment required to create a new play area.

4.6

The proposal is for a play area for ages 2-7 on land close to shops at The
Downes. The location is accessible, but not close to homes. The age range
of the equipment will mitigate antisocial behaviour. Equipment for older
children is not required as the provision at Kirkway Stocks / Penryhn Park is
considered to be within reasonable travel distance.

4.7

The total cost of the scheme is £41,400, of which £28,810 would be Section
106 open space contributions, a contribution of £10,000 is assumed from
RHB and a grant of up to £3,000 will be sought from Middleton Township,
although this may not all be required, subject to contingency costs.

Page 12

4.8

The maintenance cost will be met from existing Environmental Management
budgets, but this is only possible if the requested closures of Mount Road
and Limetrees remnant / disused play areas are agreed by Middleton
Members as recommended in the Play Strategy. If this is not approved then
alternative funding will be required to pay for the maintenance of the new
play area.
Alternatives Considered

4.9

The Council is required to spend Section 106 contributions in accordance
with legal agreements and local and national planning policy. Not bringing
forward projects to spend Section 106 contributions in accordance with
these agreements and policies risk the loss of investment in local facilities,
and the refunding of monies held from Section 106 contributions where
there is a time limited period for spend.

4.10 Proposals put forward in this report have been the subject of consultation with
Ward Members and reflect their priorities. The use of resources has been
considered to maximise the funding available.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.1

The identified Section 106 funding of £38,983 is made up of Section 106
Open Space contributions from development in Hopwood Hall and East
Middleton at Alderman Kay, Tintern Road (£10,123), Old David’s Inn, Mount
Road (£20,916),

5.2

Section 106 contributions are monitored and managed to ensure that they are
received and spent in accordance with policy and financial regulations.

5.3

The Council’s Environmental Management Service will manage the
implementation of these projects in accordance with established project
management methodology and are able to meet the full cost of the project
from identified budgets.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

As identified within the report, contributions from Section 106 agreements
must be spent within the parameters of each of those legally binding
documents. Where money is not spent within the appropriate parameters,
then this risks legal challenge, which would present significant financial and
reputational as well as legal risk to the Council.

6.2

The proposals outlined in this report are compliant with the Council’s
policies on the provision of local open space Section 106 contributions.
Consultation

7.1

The projects contained within this report have been developed in
consultation with Ward Members.

Page 13

Background Papers
8.1

Place of Inspection

Provision of Recreational Open
Space in New Housing
Supplementary Planning
Document.

For Further Information Contact:

Planning and Development, Floor 3,
Number One Riverside or online at:
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/pdf/2017-0221-recreational-open-space-spdupdated-v2.pdf
Nick Barton, Tel: 01706924847,
nick.barton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 14

